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Ilarren County {Dequest Ðiver}

Itunicipal Utilities Authoritv
I99 Foul Rift Road, P"0. Bax 159

Belviilere, New Jersey 07823

Tel. (90t) 47s-5412

Fax. (908) 475-5873

April7,2017

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority

Belvidere, NJ

Dear Authority Members :

The annual financial report of the Warren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority (The "Authority") for
the year ended December 3I, 2016, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and

completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Authorþ.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Authority. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority's financial activities have been

included.

The annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, single audit, and comments and
recommendations. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Authority's organizational chart and a
list of principal officials. The financial section includes the financial statements as well as the auditors'report thereon.
Information related to the single audit section, including the auditors' report on internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants and findings and questioned costs, are included in the single audit
section ofthis report.

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Warren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority is a public body corporate and politic of the State
of New Jersey governed by nine members appointed by the Warren County Board of Chosen Freeholders.

The Authority was created in 1969 and reorganized in 1978 under and pursuant to the State Municipal Utilities
Authorities Law (P.L. 1957, Chap. 183).

The rWarren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority was created to provide for the acquisition,
construction, maintenance, operation and improvement of facilities for the collection, treatment, purification or
disposal of sewage or other wastes for the puq)ose of relieving waters of pollution within the Authority's area of
service. The Authority is authorized to collect service charges for connection with, and for use of, the Authority's
services and products. The Authority bills the customers for such usage under their respective service contracts.

As a public body under existing statute, the Authority is exempt from both federal and state taxes.
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The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority
Page2
April7,2017

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: (Cont'd)

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Definingthe Financial Rgporting

Entity" establishes standaids to determine whether a governmental component unit should be included in the financial
reporting entity. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government arê financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations_for which the nature

ãnd significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity'J financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints^a
voting majority of the organization's governing body and (l) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2)
therels a þoteitial for thè organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens

on, the primary government. Â legally sepárate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a
reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the separate

organizãtion aie entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its
coãstituents. (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access,

a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization. (3). The economic resources

received ór held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled
to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government. As the financial reporting entity
was established in accordance with New Jersey statutes, the requirements of GASB Codification Section 2100 were
not followed and, accordingly, the reportitrg 

"niity 
could be diffeìent from accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.

Although the Freeholders of Warren County appoint the governing members of the Authority and the County has

secured the payment of the Authority's bonds and loans, the Authority is autonomous from the County in all other
pertinent matters concerning oversight responsibility. Accordingly, the Authority is considered a component unit of
the County of Warren.

General Trends and Significant Events

During 2016,the Authority experienced the following:

r Both sewer plants operated without any major breakdowns of violations.

o Each facility is considered to be well run and orderly with housekeeping and storage exceptional.

o The Authority has gone over 17 years without any lost time accidents and no lost work days.

o During 2016, the Authority achieved final completion of the Oxford Wastewater Treatment Facility
(WWTF) Upgrade Phase #1 as required by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
(NJDEP).

r The Wanen County Pollution Control Financing Authority (PCFA) continues to discharge the effluent
from its facility into the Authority's Oxford Treatment plant. The flow from the PCFA plant continues to
generate signiflrcant revenue for the Authority'

CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the Authority is guided in large part by st¿te statute as detailed in

"Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 5. The Authority has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to

deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
prãtectión Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on

deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds

onty in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.
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The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority

Page 3

April T ,2017

RISK MANAGEMENT: The Authority carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general
liability, excess liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on propert¡r,
contents, and fidelity bonds.

OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Nisivoccia LLP, CPAs, was selected by the Authority. The auditors'
report on the financial statements is included in the financial section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Warren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities
Authority for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens of Warren County and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting
staff.

Respectfully subm itted,

DanielOlshefski E. Chad Chamberlain
ChairmanA uthorify's Chief Financial Offi cer
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Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority

Belvidere, NJ

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Pequest River Municipal Utilities Authority, (the

"Authorit5i"), a component unit of the County of Wa:ren, as of and for the year ended December 31,2016, and the

related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the foregoing table of contents.

Mønagemenî's Responsíbìlity for the Fínøncial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A udíto rs' Resp o nsíbility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, audit requirements prescribed

by the Division of Local Govemment Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey (the

"Division"), and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers intemal control relevant to the Authority's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such

opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

www.ntstvoccla.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternational
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The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority
Page2

Opíníons

In our opinion, the component unit financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and cash

flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America.

Other Møtters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and the required supplementary information pension schedules be presented to supplement the financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures

to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the financial statements,

and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Authority's financial statements. The supplementary information schedules listed in the table of contents and the
other information in the introductory section as well as the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards, as

required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"); and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-

08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and are not a required part of financial statements.

The supplementary information schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information schedules and schedules of
expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements

as a whole.
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The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Warren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority

Page 3

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Audíting Standørds

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 7, 2017 on our
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mt. Arlington, New Jersey
Apnl7,2017 NISIVOCCIA LLP

a4
William F. Schroeder
Registered Municipal Accountarft #452
Certifi ed Public Accountant
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AT\D ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

This section presents management's analysis of the Authorþ's financial condition and activities forthe year. This
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements.

Financial Hiehliehts

Management believes the Authority's financial position to be strong for a small county utility. The Authority is
functioning within its stringent financial policies and guidelines set forth by the Authority members. Following is a
list of key highlights for 2076:

The principal paid on the 2002 trust loan was $119,112, and the balance is $837,525. The principal paid

on the 2002 fund loan was $114,048, and the balance is $676,785. The principal paid on the 2003 trust
loan was 956,872, the amount defeased was $3,128 due to a project credit and the balance is $490,000.
The principal paid on the 2003 fund loan was $52,193 and the balance is $232,015. The principal paid on

the2014 trust loan was $135,000, and the balance is $3,440,000. The principal paid on the 2014 fund
loan was 8449,745, and the balance is $7,683,137.

a

Sewer charges decreased $448,500 in2016 or 15.58%. This decrease is mainly due to lower flow rates

from participating entities. Sewer Connection Fees decreased $41,792 due to the completion of a

construction project at LaTorre Plazain the prior year.

Overview of Annual Financial Report

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to, and should be read in conjunction
with the audited financial statements and supplementary information. The Management's Discussion and Analysis
represents management's examination and analysis of the Authority's financial condition and performance. Summary
financial statement data, key financial and operational indicators used in the Authority's strategic plan, budget, and
other management tools were used for this analysis.

The financial statements report information about the Authority using full accrual accounting as utilized by similar
government activities. The financial statements include a statement of net position; a statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position; a statement of cash flows; and notes to the financial statements. In addition,
there are several supplementary information schedules.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Authority on a full accrual historical cost basis.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Authority's assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and
liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position is one
indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

While the statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at
year-end, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of the business
activities over the course of the year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. All changes
in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows. This statement also provides certain information about the Authority's recovery of its costs.
Rate setting policies use different methods of cost recovery not fully provided for by generally accepted accounting
principles. The primary objectives of the rate model are to improve equity among customer classes and ensure that
capital costs are allocated on the basis of long-term requirements, ensuring that growth pays for growth.

a
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Overview of Annual Financial Report (Cont'd)

The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operational, financing, and

investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information, without consideration

of the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

The notes to the /inøncial støtemenfs provide required disclosures and other information that are essential to a full
understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information concerning the Authority's
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments,

contingencies and subsequent events, ifany.

The supplementüry informøtion schedules provide detailed comparison of budget to actual expenses, as well as

important debt coverage data.

Financial Conditions

The Authority is in excellent shape to meet future financial demands'

The Authority's total net position increased from the prior year by $396,517. The analysis below focuses on the

Authority's net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table II) during the year.

Table I
Condensed Statement of Net Position

2016 2015

December 3l Increase/
(Decrease)

from 2015

Percent of
Increase/

(Decrease)

Current and Other Assets

CapitalAssets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Net Investment in Capital
Assets

Restricted Net Position
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

1,687,689

13,70r,754

s 8,249,076 $ 8,747,818
18,411,319

$

26, 691.399 27 159 t37 (467,738)

373,329 r27,724 245 605

1,664,622

18,442.323

(498,742)
31,004

-5.70%
0.17%

-1.72%

192.29%

t.39%
-4.43%

-3.83%

7.93%
-2.36%
-0.13%

74,337.425

23,067
(635,671)

15,3 89.443 r6,002,047 (612,604)

52.294 58,340 (6.046) -10.36%

5,821,370
l,o3 8,808
4,762,873

5,393,382
1,063,896

427,928
(25,088)
(6,323)4,769.196

$ 11,622,991 $ ll 74 $ 396,517 3.53Yo

Total net position increased 3.53yo. This was mainly a result of normal business operations and a reduction of debt

associated with capital assets.
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F'inancial difions (Cont'd)

Changes in the Authority's net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed Statement of
Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the year.

Table II
Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

December 3l Increase/
(Decrease)

from 2015

Percent of
Increase/

(Decrease)2016 2015

Operating Revenue

Nonoperating Revenue

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Cost of Providing Services

Administrative and

General Expenses

Depreciation
Nonoperating Expenses

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

$ s2,451,200
41,263

2,935,740
20,804

(484,540)
20,459

-t650%
98.34%
-15.7001î,

-2.95vo

-4.66%

1.73%

-14.07%
-26.34%
-6.41%

-59.82%
9.64%

3.53o/o

$

2.492.463 2,956,544 (464,08t)

1,230,738

217,679

1,l 94,gg5

228,311
1,423,196

344,427

202,019

35,253

(r0,632)
1,447,817

392,903
255,226

24,627

48,476

53,207

2,095,946 1,969,642 126,304

396,517

11,226,474

986,902
10,239,572

(590,385)
986p02

s r t.622.99r $ 11,226,474 $ 396,517

Results of Operations

Operating Revenues: The decrease in operating revenues is primarily due to sewer charges decreasing 15.58% from
2015. Nonoperating revenue increased due to higher interest income.

Expenses: Operating expenses increased 1.73% over 2015. The Authority maintains its policy of careful spending to

stay within the budget.

Budgetary Highlights: Over the course of the year, the Authority's Board of Directors did not make any

amendments to the original budget.
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Capital Assets: As of December 31,2016, the Authority had S1S.44 million invested in capital assets, including

lanã, vehicles and two 500,000 gallons per day wastewater treatment plants, four pumping stations and the sewer

collection system infrastructure. This amount represents a net increase of $31,004 from the prior year primarily due

to the new project costs that are being funded by the 2014 New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Loan.

The following table summarizes the Authority's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and changes therein,

for the year ended December 31,2016. These changes are presented in detail in Note 2 to the financial statements'

Table III
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

December 3l lncrease

from 2015

Percent of
Increasel

20t6 2015

Land
Plant, Equipment and Vehicles

Construction in Progress

Total

Less:

Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net of

Accumulated Depreciation

NJ Environmental Infrastructure

Trust Loan Payable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Fund Loan Payable

Unamortized Bond Issuance Premium

Net Pension Liability

12,93 5,878

33,727,539 33,303,632 423,907

15,285,216 14,892,313 392,903

s 18,442,323 $ 18,411,319 s 3l,004

$ 52,000
20,739,661

52,000
20,720,018
12,531,614

19,643

404,264

$

$ 0.09%
3.23%
1.27%

2.64%

0.t7%

Long-term Liabitities: At year-end, the Authorþ had $14,525,497 in debt outstanding - a decrease of $628,659

from last year - as shown in Table IV. (More detailed information about the Authority's long-term liabilities is
presented in Note 3 to the financial statements.)

Table tV
Outstandinq Long-Term Liabilities

December 31 Increase/
(Decrease)

from 20152016 2015
Percent of
Decrease

$ 4,767,525 $ 5,081,637 $ (314,112) -6.18%

8,591,937

53,223

1,166,035

9,207,923

60,827

864.596

(615,986)

(7,604)

-6.69%

-12.50%
34.86%301 439

$ 14,578,720 $ 15,2 14.983 s (636,263) -4.18%

Cash Flow Activity: The Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 2016 increased by $45,762 from the previous year.

The Authority maintains an adequate cash balance to meet future emergencies and capital requirements.

Final Comments: During 2016, the Authority continued their agreement with Billy Wauhop & Associates for
engineering and the management of business and supervision of operations. The Authority still continues with shared

services with the County of Warren.
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WARREN COLINTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER3I.2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Sewer Charges Receivable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Receivable

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Depreciable Plant, Equipment and Vehicles

Land and Construction in Progress

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Changes in Assumptions - Pensions

Changes in Proportion - Pensions

Investment Gains - Pensions

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - Pensions

Contribution Subsequent to the Measurement Date - Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

2016

$ 6,394,639

1,038,808

7,433,447

23,957

791,672

9,249,076

5,454,445

12,987,878

18,442,323

26,691,399

241,540

30,666

44,462

21,685

34,976

373,329
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WARREN COLINTY (PEQUEST RTVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER3I" 2016

(Continued)

2016

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Payroll Deductions Payable

Accrued Wages Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Developers' Escrow Payable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Loan Payable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Fund Loan Payable

Unamortized Loan Premium

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable

Net Pension Liability
NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Loan Payable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Fund Loan Payable

Unamortized Loan Premium

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unamortized Gain on Loan Refunding

Changes in Proportion - Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 86,049

549,806

1,862

13,488

98,803

343

323,638

613,700

7,603

1,695,292

60,372

1,166,035

4,443,997

7,978,237

45,620

13,694,r57

15,389,443

16,495

35,799

52,294

5,921,310

1,038,808

4,762,873

s 11,622,99r

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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WARREN COLTNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MI.JNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE. EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

Operating Revenue:
Sewer Charges
Sewer Connection Fees

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Providing Services
Administrative and General Expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue/ (Expenses) :

Interest Income
NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Loan Principal Credit
Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenue/ (Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

20r6

s 2,430,912
8,581

11,707

2,451,200

1,230,138
217,679
392,903

1,840,720

610,480

34,012
3,128

(2s1, l 03)

(213,963)

396,517

1r,226,474

$ 11,622,991

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers

Other Receipts

Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees (Including Grant Expenses)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of Capital Assets

Construction in Progress

Proceeds from NJ Infrastructure Trust Loan

Principal Paid on NJ Environmental Infrastructure Fund Loan

Interest Expense

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Changes in Net Position:

Decrease in Sewer Rents Receivable

Increase in Accrued Compensated Absences Payable

Increase in Accounts Payable

Increase in Payroll Deductions Payable

Increase in Accrued Vy'ages Payable

(Increase) in Change in Assumptions - Pensions

(Increase) in Net Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - Pensions

Increase in Net Pension Liability
(Decrease) in Changes in Proportion - Pensions

(Increase) in Investment Gains - Pensions

(Increase) in Contribution Subsequent to the Measurement Date - Pensions

Total Changes in Net Position

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

WARREN COL]NTY ßEOUEST RIVER) MLINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

2016

s 2,443,219

11,707

(1,399,472)

1,055,454

(re,643)
(383,996)

540,778

(926,970)

(253,873)

(1,043,704)

34,012

34,012

45,762

7,387,685

S 7,433,447

$ 610,480

392,903

3,726

7,832

t99
60

590

(148,689)

(1,059)

301,439

( 18,688)

(s8,363)

(34,976)

444,974

$ 1,055,454
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WARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Warren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority is a public body corporate and politic of
the State of New Jersey governed by nine members appointed by the Wa:ren County Board of Chosen
Freeholders.

The Authorþ was created in 1969 and reorganized in 1978 under and pursuant to the State Municipal
Utilities Authorities Law (P.L. 1957, Chap. 183).

The Wa:ren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority was created to provide for the
acquisition, construction, maintenance, operation and improvement of facilities for the collection,
treatmento purification or disposal of sewage or other wastes for the purpose of relieving waters of pollution
within the Authority's area of service. The Authority is authorizedto impose and to collect service charges

for connection with, and for use of, the Authority services and products. The Authority bills the customers
for such usage under their respective service contracts.

A. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The Authority utilizes the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenue is recorded as earned and
expenses are reflected as the liability is incurred. Operating revenue, such as charges for services
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the Authority. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal value.
Nonoperating revenue, such as subsidies and investment earnings, results from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities. Nonexchange transactionso in which the Authority gives or
receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange, generally do not occur,
with the exception of investment earnings.

All activities of the Authorþ are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund.
Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs

(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a

continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user changes; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination ofrevenue earned and/or expenses incurred
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other
purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its
measurement focus. The frnancial statements are reported using the economic measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. The transactions of the Authority are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets, all deferred
outflows of resources and all liabilities and deferred inflows of resources associated with the
operations are included on the Statement of Net Position. Net position (i.e., total assets and

deferred outflows of resources net of total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources) are

segregated into "net investment in capital assets"; "restricted" and oounrestricted" components.
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ARREN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note I - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

A. Basis of Presentation and Accounting (Cont'd)

Reporting Entitv

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Defining the

Financial Reporting Entity" establishes standards to determine whether a governmental component

unit should be included in the financial reporting entity. Component units are legally separate

organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable.

In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if
it appoints a voting majorþ of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its

will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific fînancial burdens on, the primary government. A legally separate,

tax-exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a reporting entity if all of the

following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the separate organization

are entirely or almost entirely for the direct beneflrt of the primary government, its component units,

or its constituents. (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the

ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate

organization (3). The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the

specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise

access, are significant to that primary government As the financial reporting entity was established

in accordance with New Jersey statutes, the requirements of GASB Codification Section 2100 were

not followed and, accordingly, the reporting entity could be different from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

B. Grants

Recognition of revenue from grants is based on the accrual basis of accounting. Grant funds

received before costs are incurred are considered unearned revenue.

Grant related expenditures incurred in advance of receipt of grant funds result in the recording of
receivables and revenue. Grants not externally restricted and utilized to finance operations are

identified as nonoperating revenue.

C. Inventories

The cost of inventories of supplies are recorded as expenses at the time individual items are

purchased, since they are immaterial to the financial position and results of operations.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amounts include petty cash, amounts on deposit, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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WARREN COUNTY (PEQUEST RIVER) MIINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note I - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

E Investments

Investments are generally stated at fair value with a few exceptions. The Authoriry classifies
certificates of deposit which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than
twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments. The Authority's investments are limited
by the 1993 and 2003 Bond Resolutions to obligations of or guaranteed by the federal government
and bank certificates of deposit.

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from the estimates.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued and reported as a liability in the period earned. The balance as

of December 31,2016 was $60,372, which is included on the Statement of Net Position as a non-

current liability.

H. Revenue Recognition

The Authority has service agreements with several other local government agencies. Customers are

billed quarterly based on estimates resulting from the prior year's actual usage. First quarter bills
each year are adjusted, ifnecessary, for actual usage ofthe prior year. Revenue is recorded net of
any discounts, assessments or abatements, if applicable.

I. Net Position

Net Position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b)
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the Authority that is applicable
to a future reporting period. The Authority had deferred outflows of resources at December 31,

2016, for the changes in assumptions in pensions, changes in proportion in pensions, the net

difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments, the

difference between expected and actual pension experience and the Authority contribution
subsequent to the measurement date related to pensions at Decembet 31,2016.

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the Authority that is applicable to
a future reporting period. The Authority had deferred inflows of resources at December 31,2016,
for an unamortized gain on a bond refunding and the changes in proportion in pension.

Net position is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted and
unrestricted.

G
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WARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note I - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

I. Net Position (Cont'd)

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets or related debt also would be included in this component of net position.

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and

deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of
net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

J. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where appropriate, are reduced by the
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The allowance is established at the discretion
of management of the Authority as deemed necessary based on prior collection history.

K. Restricted Accounts

In accordance with the 1993 and 2003 Bond Resolutions, the Authority has established the
following cash and investment accounts for the deposit, in the priority of the order listed, of all
revenue received by the Authority:

Account

Renewal and
Replacement

Amount

Amount needed to increase
the balance to equal the
renewal and replacement
requirements as detìned by
the resolution.

Use fbr which Restricted

Transfêrs to meet minimum levels
required in the Bond Service, Sinking
or Bond Reserve Accounts or major
repairs, renewal and extensions
of the system.

L. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and additions
toldeductions from the PERS's net position have been determined on the same basis as they are

reported by the PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Pension
Plan investments are reported at fair value.
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Note 2 -

V/ARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MI.INICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost and consisted of the following, as of December 31,,2015 and20l6

Balance Balance

Dec. 3l 2015 Additions Deletions Dec.3l 2016

Capital Assets to be depreciated
Plant, Equipment and

Vehicles

Total Capital Assets to be depreciated

Capital Assets not to be depreciated
Land

Construction-in-Progress

Total Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets (Net)

$20,720,018 $ 19,643 $20,739,661

20,720,018 19,643

52,000

t2,53t,6t4 404,264

20,739,661

52,000

12,935,878

33,303,632

(14,892,313)

423,907

(392,903)

33,727,539

(15,285,216)

$ 1 8,41 1,3 19 $ 3 1,004 $ -0- s18,442,323

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on the shaight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as

incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Capital assets have been reviewed for
impairments.

Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their estimated useful lives are summarized below:

Vehicles 6 Years

Land Improvements 20 Years

Buildings 45 Years

Communications, Business and Computer Equipment 2-15 Years

Machinery and Tools 15 Years

Appliances 10 Years

LablScience/Engineering Equipment l0 Years

Fumiture and Accessories 20 Years

Grounds and Agricultural Equipment 15 Years

Sewer/WaterÆlectric Equipment 30 Years

Construction-in-Pro gress

As of December 31,20T6, the Authority continues to move forward with plans to complete its Oxford
water treatment facilities upgrade, as well as conducting a leachate study and interceptor evaluation with
cumulative costs totalin g $12,935,87 8.
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WARREN COI.INTY (PEQUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note3- Lons-TermDebt

During the year ended December 31,2016, the following changes occurred in long-term debt reported in
the financial statements:

Beginning
Balance Accrued Retired

Ending
Balance

NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Trust Loan Payable

NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Fund Loan Payable

Unamortized Bond Issuance

Premium
Net Pension Liability

$ 5,081,637

9,207,923

60,827

864,596

$ 3l4,lr2 s 4,767,525

615,986 8,591,937

7,604 53,223

r,166,035$ 301 39

$ 15,2t4,983 $ 301,439 $ 937,702 g 14,578,720

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loans

On October 15,2002, the Authority entered into two loan agreements with the State of New Jersey, acting
by and through the NJ Department of Environmental Protection Fund (the "Fund"), and the NJ
Environmental Infrastructure Trust (the "Trust"), in the aggregate amount of $4,300,000, which represents

direct obligations of the Authority. The loan agreements were obtained to finance the cost of the

Belvidere wastewater treatment plant upgrade.

Principal payments to the Fund amounted to $114,048 in 2016, and will continue on a semiannual basis

over the next 6 years at zero interest. Principal payments to the Trust amounted to $119,112 in20l6, and
will continue on an annual basis over the remaining 6 years.

On October 15,2003, the Authorþ entered into two supplemental loan agreements with the State ofNew
Jersey, acting by and through the NJ Department of Environmental Protection Fund (the "Fund"), and the
NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust (the "Trust"), in the aggregate amount of $2,054,515, which
represents direct obligations of the Authorþ. The loan agreements were obtained to finance the
additional costs of the Belvidere wastewater treatment plant upgrade.

Principal payments to the Fund amounted to $52,193 in20l6, and will continue on a semi-annual basis

over the next 5 years at zero interest. Principal payments to the Trust amounted to $56,872 tn20l6, and
will continue on an annual basis over 7 years. Additionally, $3,128 was defeasedlr;,2016 due to a project
creidt.

On May 2I,2014, the Authority entered into two loan agreements with the State of New Jersey, acting by
and through the NJ Department of Environmental Protection Fund (the "Fund"), and the NJ
Environmental Infrastructure Trust (the "Trust"), in the aggregate amount of $11,707,882, which
represents direct obligations of the Authority. The loan agreements were obtained to finance the cost of
the Oxford wastewater treatment plant upgrade.
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V/ARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016
(Continued)

Note 3 - Long-Term Debt (Cont'd)

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loans (Cont' d)

Principal payments to the Fund amounted to $449,745 in2016, and will continue on a semi-annual basis

over the next 17 years at zero interest. Principal payments to the Trust amounted to $135,000 in 2016,

and will continue on an annual basis over 17 years.

The Trust loans were issued at a premium totaling $159,670 which is being amortized over the life of the

loan on the straight-line basis. $7,603 was amortized in 2016 and $7,603 in 2015. The unamortized loan
premium balance was $60,827 at December 31,2016.

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust, NJ Environmental Infrastructure Refunding Bonds,

Series 2007F were issued to refund the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust 2002A. 84,123
and 54,123 of gain on the refunding of these bonds was amortized in 2016 and 2015. The unamortized
gain on bond refunding balance was $16,495 at December 31,2016.

Outstanding Dec. 31, 2016
Date Amount

Interest
Rate

Balance
Dec.31,2016Puqrose

Trust Loan -2002/
Retunding- 20074

Trust Loan -2003

Trust Loan -2014

123,638
128,423
137,970
142,770
147,564
157,160

60,000
65,000
65,000
70,000
75,000

155,000

140,000
145,000
155,000
160,000
170,000
985,000

1,165,000
520,000

5.00%
s.00%
5.00%
s.00%
s.00%
4.75%

4.20%
425%
s.00%
5.00%
4.50%
4.7s%

5.00%
s.00%
5.00%
5.00%

3.00-5.00%
3.00%

3.00-3.2s%

s 837,525

490,000

3,440,000

4,767,525

323,638

8lr/2017
8/t/2018
8/u20t9
8/r/2020
8/t/2021
8lt/2022

8/l/2017
8/t/2018
8/t/2019
8l|2020
8/U2021

8/t/2022-81U2023

8/U20t7
8/U20t8
8lU20r9
8lt/2020
8/U202r

81U2022-81U2026
81U2027-8lt/203r
8tU2032-8/t/2033

Less: Short-Term Portion

Long-Term Portion

$

$ 4,443,887
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WARREN COLINTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note 3 - Long-Term Debt (Cont'd)

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loans (Cont' d)

Maturities of Loans
Outstanding Dec, 31.2016 Interest

Rate
Balance

Purþose

Fund Loan - 2002

Fund Loan - 2003

Fund Loan - 2014

Date Amount Dec. 3l 20t6

2/u20t7
8/ll20t7
2lv20t8
8/u2018
2/U2019
8lt/2019
2/r/2020
8/t/2020
2/t/2021
8/t/2021

2/t/2022-811/2022

2/1/17
8/t/17
2/1118
8/1/l 8
2/t/19
8/|19

2/U2020
8/t/2020
2/t/2021
8lU202t

2/Ut7
8/t/17
2/t/18
8/vt8
2/Ut9
8lvt9

2/r/2020
8/t/2020
2/t/2021
8/U2021

2/U2022-8/t/2026
2/|2027-8/l/2031
2/U2032-811/2033

149,915
299,830
149,915
299,830
149,9t5
299,830
149,915
299,830
149,915
299,830

2,248,725
2,248,725

936,962

$ 676;785

232,015

7,683,137

g,5gl,g37

613.700

s 14,216
99,016
12,096

100,158
9,895

104,479
7,530

105,376
5,084

106,192
112,743

6,977
43,746
6,205

46,038
5,358

45,191
4,362

47,259
3,290

23,589

-0-%

-0-o/t

-0-Yo

Less: Short-Term Portion

Long-Term Portion Å_1fl8231_



25

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 1. 20 1 6

(Continued)

Note 3 - Long-Term Debt (Cont'd)

NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loans (Cont' d)

Maturitv Schedule Giving Effect to the

"NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loars. Series 20024. 20034 and 2014"

Fund Loan Trust Loan Total Trust Loan

Principal Principal Principal Interest
Total Debt

ServiceYear

20r7
2018
2019
2020
2021

2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2033

$ 613,700
614,242
614,668
614,272
587,900

2,361,468
2,249,725

936,962

$ 323,638
338,423
357,970
372,770
392,564

1,29"1,160

1,165,000
520,000

937,338
952,665
972,638
987,042
980,464

3,658,628
3,413,725
1,456,962

237,127
206,525
l75,l8l
156,931

137,931
444,381
243,331

46,644

1,174,465
1,159,190
1,147,819
1,143,973
l,l I 8,395

4,103,009
3,657;056
1,503,606

$ $ $

Less: Short-Term
Portion

Long

8,591,937 4,',167,525

323,638

13,359,462

937.338

1,648,051 15,007,513

l,613 700 237 127 174.465

-Term Portion $ 7,978,237 g 4,443,887 $ 12,422,124 $ 1,410,924 $ 13,933,049

Net Pension Liability

The Public Employees' Retirement System's (PERS) net pension liability is recorded in the current and

long-term liabilities of the Authority. The current portion of the net pension liability at December 31,

2016 is $-0- and the long-term portion is 51,166,035. See Note 4 for further information on the PERS.

Note 4 - Pension

Authority employees participate in a contributory, defined benefit public employee retirement system:

the State of New Jersey Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS).

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and

Benefits (the Division). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to the Division's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at

www. state.nj. us/treasury/pens ions/annrprts. shtm I
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016
(Continued)

Note4 - Pension(Cont'd)

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154. PERS provides retirement, death and

disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest

after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following represents the

membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

Members who were enrolled prior to July t,2007
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July l, 2007 andprior to November 2,2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to Jwte28,20ll
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Jlurlre28,20ll

Service retirement benefits of 1/55ú offinal average salary for each year ofservice credit is available to
Tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service

retirement benefits of 1/60û of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4
members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits

are available to Tiers t-andZ members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more years of
service credit before age 62 and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are

reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a

member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1

members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service.

Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least l0 years of service credit and have not
reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:l5A and requires contributions by active members

and contributing members. The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially
determined rate which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter lg,P.L.2009
provided an option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability
contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be

credited with the full payment and any such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The

actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced

normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid
by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of
assets. Authority contributions to PERS amounted to $33,113 for 2016.

The employee contribution rate was 7.06%o effective July l, 2015 and increased to 7.20Yo effective July 1,

20 1 6. Subsequent increases after October I , 20t 1 are being phased in over 7 years effective on each July
l't to bring the total pension contribution rate to 7.5%o of base salary as of July 1, 2018.

I
2

J

4

5
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WARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVEru MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016
(Continued)

Note4 - Pension(Cont'd)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2016, the Authority's liability was $1,166,035 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liabilþ was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,

2015 which was rolled forward to June 30,2016. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative
to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30,2016, the
Authority's proportion was 0.0039%, which was an increase of 0.00009% from its proportion measured as

ofJune 30,2015.

For the year ended December 31,2016, the Authority recognized actualpension expense in the amount of
$109,614. At June 30,2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Changes in Assumptions - 2014
Changes in Assumptions - 2015
Changes in Assumptions - 2016

Changes in Proportion - 2014
Changes in Proportion - 2015
Changes in Proportion - 2016

Contribution Subsequent to the Measurement Date - 2016

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Invesfnent Eamings on Pension Plan Invesfnents - 2014

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Invesfrnents - 2015

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
InvesÍnent Eamings on Pension Plan Invesfrnents - 2016

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - 2015
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - 2016

Amortization
Period

in Years

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ 35,799

6.44
5.72
5.57

s 14,657

59,893
166,gg0

6.44
5.72
5.57

16,737

13,929

34,976

(2r,964)

14,053

52,373

16,617
5,068

5

5

I

5

5.72
s.57

s 373,329 _s 3sw

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding
employer specific amounts including changes in proportion and the Authority contribution subsequent to
the measurement date) related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016
(Continued)

Note4- Pension(Cont'd)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Cont'd)

Year Ending
December 31, Total

2017

2018

20t9
2020
2021

$ 69,273

69,273

80,255

67,426
21,460

$ 307,687

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial

valuation as of July 1,2015 which was rolled forward to June 30,2016. This actuarial valuation used the

following actuarial assumptions.

Inflation Rate 3.08%
Salary Increases:

2012-2021 1.65 - 4.15% based on age

Thereafter 2.65 - 5.15% based on age

InvesÍnent Rate of Return 7.65%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for
male and female active participants. For local employees, mortality tables are set back2 years for males

and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the

base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified \[P-20I4
projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and

Female Mortality Tables (set back I year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries
of former members and a one yeff static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In
addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future
improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan

actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees

were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward one year

for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July l, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial

experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these

assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience

deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.
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Note4- Pension (Cont'd)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
(7 .65% at June 30, 2016) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce

the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in PERS' target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are

summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of
Return

Cash
lJ.S. Treasuries
Investrnent Grade Credit
Mortgages
High Yield Bonds
Infl ation-Indexed B onds
Broad U.S. Equities
Developed Foreign Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Private Equity
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return
Real Estate (Property)
Commodities
Global Debt ex. U.S.
REIT

5.ÙOYo

l.sOYo
8.OOYy

2.OOo/o

2.OOYy

L.sOYo

26.OOYy

13.25Yo
6.50Yo
9.OOYy

12.sOYo

2.OOYy

o.500Á
5.OOo/o

5.25Yo

O.87Yo

1.74o/o

l.79Yo
l.67Yo
4.56Yo
3.44Yo
8.53o/o

6.83Yo
9.95Yo

12.4OYo

4.68yo
6.gl%o
5.45Yo

-O.25Yo

5.63Yo

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.98% as of June 30,2016. This single
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.65% and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20 Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average

rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based upon the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year.
The local employers contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions.
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Note4 - Pension(Cont'd)

Discount Rate (Cont'd)

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2034. T\erefore, the long-term
expected rate of retum on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2034, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.

Sensitivitv of the Authoritv's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilitv to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of
December 3I,2016 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed below, as well as what the Authority's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

December 31,2016
t%

Decrease
(2.98%)

Cr¡rrent
Discount Rate

(3.e8%)

t%
Increase
(4.e8%)

Authority's proportionate share

of the Net Pension Liability $ 1,428,840 $ 1,166,035 S 949,067

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued

PERS financial statements.

Note 5 - Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petfy cash, amounts in deposits, money market accounts, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Invesfinents are generally stated at fair value with a few exceptions. The Authority classifies certificates
of deposit which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from
the date ofpurchaseo as investments.

GASB Statement No. 40, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures, requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the Authority in its cash,

cash equivalents and investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered. Custodial risk is the risk
that in the event of bank failure, the govemment's deposits may not be returned.

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its cash management plan, the Authority ensures that any deposit
or investrnents matures within the time period that approximates the prospective need for the funds,
deposited or invested, so that there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits or investments.
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Note 5 - Cash and Cash Equivalents and Invesfinents (Cont'd)

Credit Risk - The Authority limits its invesfnents to those authorized in its cash management plan which
are permitted under state statutes as detailed below and on the following page.

Custodial Credit Risk - The Authority's policy with respect to custodial credit risk requires that the

Authority ensures that Authority funds are only deposited in financial institutions in which NJ
municipalities are pennitted to invest their funds.

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that authorities deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the

United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. Authorities are also permitted to deposit
public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal 5% of the average daily balance of collected public
funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75Yo of the capital
funds of the depository must provide collateral having market value at least equal to I00%o of the amount

exceeding 75olo.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank Board or a
banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than

$25,000,000.

Investments:

New Jersey statutes permit the Authorþ to purchase the following types of securities

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the

United States of America;

(2) Government money market mutual funds;

(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance

*ith - aõt of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from
the date of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not
dependent on any index or other external factor;

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the local unit or bonds or other obligations of school districts
of which the local unit is a part or within which the school district is located;
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Note 5 - Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Cont'd)

Investments: (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Local Government Services in the Departrnent of
Community Affairs for investment by local units;

(6) Local govemment investment pools;

(7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to
section 1 of P.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:184-90.4); or

(S) Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (l) and

(3) above;

the custody ofcollateral is transferred to a third party;

the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in
section 1 of P.L. 1970, c.236 (C.17:9-41); and

(e) a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of collateral
is executed.

As of December 31, 2016, cash and cash equivalents and investrnents of the Warren County (Pequest

River) Municipal Utilities Authority consisted of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments

Account

Unrestricted

Money
Market
Funds Totals

Petty
Cash

Certificates
of Deposit

Restricted:
Renewal and

Replacement

Checking
Accotmts

s 1,276,993 $ 300 $ 3,117,346 $ 2,000,000 g 6,394,639

38 808 1 1.038.808

s 1,276,993 $ 300 $ 3, 156.154 $ 3,000,000 s 7,433,447

The carrying amount of the Authority's cash and cash equivalents and investments at December 3I,2016,
was $7,433,447, and the bank balance was $7,458,074. The Authority did not hold any investments

during the year other than certificates of deposit.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016
(Continued)

Amounts Required by Bond Resolutions

The following cash and investment accounts are required by the Authority's bond resolutions

Renewal and Replacement Account $ 1,038,808

Cash and Investments on Hand 1,038,808

Excess

Unamortized Loss on Bond Refunding

During 2003, theAuthority issued Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 for $5,550,000

with interest rates ranging from 2.00Yo to 4.50%o. These bonds were issued to provide funds: (1) to
currently refund $5,365,000 of the outstanding principal amount of Wastewater Revenue Refunding

Bonds, Series 1993 maturing in the years 2005 to 2016, which were originally issued by the Authority to
permanentþ finance a portion of the cost of the System, including two wastewater treatment plants,

interceptor sewers and other facilities in the Service Area (the "Refunding Project"), and (2) to pay the

costs and expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with the authorization, issuance and delivery

of the bonds. The net proceeds of $5,404,298 (after payment of $145,702 in underwriting fees and other

issuance costs) was deposited by the Trustee into a special fund or account (the "Escrow Fund") created

under the Escrow Deposit Agreement. This amount when invested in direct, non-callable United States

Treasury Obligations produced sufficient funds, to pay the principal of, redemption premium and interest

on, the refunded bonds. As a result, the 1993 Bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability for

those bonds was removed from the Statement of Net Position in 2003.

Although the current refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $277 ,823 for the year

ended December 31,2003, the Authority reduced its aggregate debt service payments by approximately

$397,000 over the next 13 years, and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values

of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $299,500.

The loss on the current refunding of $277,823 was amortized as apart of interest expense over the

remaining life of the issue of 13 years on a straight-line basis. Amortization of the loss for 2016 was

514,247 and for 2015 was $21,371. The unamortized loss on bond refunding balance was $0 at

December 3I,2016.

NoteS- RiskManagement

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Health benefits are provided to

employees through the State of New Jersey health benefits plan.

Propertj¡ and Liability

The Authority is currently a member of the New Jersey Utility Authorities Joint Insurance Fund (the

"Fund"). Thé Fund is both an insured and self-administered group of local utility authorities established

for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance coverage for the members in order to keep local user

fees and charges at a minimum for the local utility authorities who form the membership of the joint
insurance fund.

-0-$
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Note 8 - Risk Management (Cont'd)

The following coverages are offered by the Fund to its members

a) Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability
b) Liability Other than Motor Vehicles
c) Property Damage Other than Motor Vehicles
d) Motor Vehicle
e) Environmental

As a member of the Fund, the Authority could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of
deficiencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would become responsible for
their respective shares of the Fund's liabilities.

The Fund can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of New Jersey

Department of Banking and Insurance. These distributions are divided amongst the members in the

same ratio as their individual assessment relates to the total assessment of the membership body.

The December 31, 2016 audit report of the Fund is not filed as of the date of this audit. Selected,

summarized financial information for the Fund as of December 31,2015 is as follows:

NJ Utility Authorities
Joint Insurance

Fund
Dec. 3l 2015

$ 13,714,458Total Assets

Net Position

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Members Dividends

$ 6,155,468

$ 10,284,194

$ 9,176,934

$ 1,107,260

$ I,500,000

Financial statements for the Fund are available at the offices of the Fund's Executive Director:

New Jersev Utilifv Authorities Joint Insurance Fund
PERMA Risk Management Services
9 Campus Drive, Suite 216
Parsippany, NJ 07 054-4412
(20r) 88t-7632
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New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The Authority has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
"Contributory Method". Under this plan, the Authority is required to remit employee withholdings to
the State on á quarterly basis. All of the Authorþ's claims are paid by the State.

Post-Retirement Benefits

The Authority contributes to the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of New Jersey

Division of Pension and Benefits. SHBP was established in 1961 underN.J.S.A. 52:14-17.25 et seq. to
provide health benefits to State employees, retirees, and their dependents.

The SHBP was extended to employees, retirees, and dependents of participating local public employers

in 1964. Local employers must adopt a resolution to participate in the SHBP.

Rules governing the operations and adminisfation of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the

New Jersey Administrative Code. SHBP provides medical, prescription drugs, mental health/ substance

abuse, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents.

The State Health Benefits Commission is the executive body by statute to be responsible for the

operations of the SHBP. The State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the SHBP. The report may be obtained in writing to:

State of New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits, P.O. Box295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295.

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute based on the amount of premiums

attributable to their retirees. Post-retirement medical benefits under the plan have been funded on the

pay-as-you-go basis since 1994. Prior to 1994, medical benefits were funded on an actuarial basis.

Contributions to pay for the health benefits of participating retirees in the SIIBP are billed to the

Authority on a monthly basis. The Authority's portion of post-retirement benefits is funded on a pay-as-

you-go basis from the operating budget.

The Authority's portion of post-retirement benefits is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from the

operating budget. During 2016 and 2015, the Authority had two employees who met eligibility
requirements and recognized expenses of approximately $16,638 and $19,827, respectively. ln2014,the
Authority had one employee who met eligibility requirements and recognized expenses of approximately

$10,1 15.

Intraentity and Interfund Transfers

In the normal course of business, the Authority will, from time to time, authorize advances between

accounts. There was one transfer between the restricted and unrestricted accounts during 2016 in the
amount of $25,1 5 l There were no advances outstanding as of December 3 l, 2016.

Note 10 -
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Note 1l - Contractual Commitments

The Authorþ has entered into several contracts in the normal course of its business operations to
provide r"*"i service for its customers including other local governments. Below is a summary of the

signifi cant contracts or agreements :

o On August 1,2015, the Authority entered into a three-year contract with Accurate Waste Removal

Services for transportation of liquid sludge for ultimate disposal. The cost for this service is $0.048

per gallon to PVSC or $0.038 per gallon to Par-Troy Hills Sewer Authority.
o In 2016, the Authority entered into a five-year agreement with the Passaic Valley Sewerage

Commissioners for disposal services of residual sludge waste. The cost of this service is $0.04 per

gallon from the Belvidere plant, and $0.045 per gallon from the Authority's Oxford plant.

o In 2016,the Authority sought bids for Contract #16-01 for the construction of the Oxford Wastewater

Treatment Facility Upgrade Phase #2 - Site Improvements. The contract was awarded to Tom Barth

and Son Excavating.
o The Authority has a two-year contract with Main Pool and Chemical Co., Inc. for chemicals used in

the process of treating wastewater.
o The Authority has sewer service agreements with other local government agencies, namely;

l. The Town of Belvidere
2. Oxford Township
3. The County of Warren
4. Pollution Control Financing Authority of Warren County
5. White Township

o The Authority holds sewer service agreements with several private entities, namely;

1. CountryViewVillage
2. Windtryst Apartments

Note 12 - Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses were as follows:

Operating
Fund

$ 51,073

Contributions
Subsequent to the

Measurement Date Total

Vendors
Due to State of New Jersey

Contracts Payable

Payroll Deductions Payable

Accrued Wages Payable
Accrued Interest Payable

Accrued Compensated
Absences Payable

Developers' Escrow Payable

34,976

51,073
34,976

549,806
1,862

13,488
98,803

60,372

343

$

$

549,806
1,862

13,488

98,803

60,372
343

$ 77s,747 $ 34,976 s q4l?3
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Note 13 - Operating Leases

The Authority has commitments to lease copying equipment under operating leases which expire in 2019

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending Amount

December 31,2017
December 31,2018
December 31,2079

$ 949
949
710

Total future minimum lease payments $ 2.608

Note 14 -

Note 15 -

Environmental Matters

The Authority's past and present daily operations include activities which are subject to extensive federal

and state ennironhental regulations. iompliance with these regulations has not had, nor does the Authority
expect such compliance to have, any matérial effect uponexpected capitalexpenses, operati-ng n9t income,

frnancial condition or competitive position of the Authority. The Authority believes that its current

practices and procedures Comply with applicable regulations. The Autho_rltY's Policy_ .is to ac.crue

environmental ånd related costs-oîa non-capital nature when it is both probable thata liability has been

incurred and that the amount can be reasonably estimated. No such amounts have been accrued in these

statements because it is believed to not be needed'

Contingencies

The Authority is periodically involved in various lawsuits, claims, and grievances arising in the normal

course of businesi, including claims for personal injury and personnel practices, property damage, and

disputes over eminent domain proceedings. In the opinion of the General Counsel to the Authority, payment

of õlaims by the Authorþ, for amounts not covered by insurance, in the aggregate, are not expected to have

a material adverse effect on the Authority's financial position.

The Authority participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to

financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. In the opinion of Authority
Management, liabilities resulting from disallowed expenditures, if any, will not be material to the

accompanying financial statements.
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PEOUEST RTVER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES

SCI{EDULE OF AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF TTIE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST TWO YEARS
UNAUDITED

Year Ending December 31,

2015 2016

Authority's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0038515500% 0.0039370286%

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 864,596 $ 1,166,035

Authority's covered employee payroll $ 255,46t S 271,238

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of its covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability

338.4s%

47.93%

429.89%

40.t4%

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the

calendar year 2015.
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SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST TWO YEARS
UNA ITED

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (34,109)

Contributi on deficiency/(excess)

Year Ending December 31,

20t5 2016

$ 34,109 $ 33,r13

(33,1 13)

$ -0-

g 271,238 S 278,719

1258% 11.88%

-0-$

District's covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the

calendar year 2015.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 I . 20 I 6

fl.JNAUDITED)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 4.90% as of June 30,2015 to 3.98o/o as of June 30, 2016. The municipal bond rate
changed from 3.80% to 2.85o/o. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments changed from
7.90%to 7.65%o.

The inflation rate changed from 3.04% as of June 30, 2015 to 3.08o/o as of June 30, 2016. The salary increases

changed from 2.15%o - 4.40% for 2012 - 2021 to 1.65%o-4.40Yo tbrough 2026 and from 3.15%-5.40% thereafter to
2.6 5%- 5 .l 5%o ther eafter.

The mortalþ rates in the July 1,2014 actuarial valuation were based on the following:

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback I year for
females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for mortality improvements
from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3 years
for males and setback one year for females) are used to value disabled retirees.

The mortality rates in the July I,2015 actuarial valuation were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortalþ rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for male and
female active participants. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for
females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortalþ from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates

were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healtþ Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and
females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one year static projection based on
mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members
provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the
plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were
based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortalþ Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward one year for females).
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SCHEDULE 1

WARREN COUNTY @EOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

RESTNCTED AND UNRESTRICTED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2OI5

Unrestricted Restricted

Net Investment
in Capital

Assets

$ t9,643
404,264

(392,903)
(s40,778)
926,970

3,128
7,604

427,928

5,393,382

Memo Total
2016

$ 2,430,912
8,581

11,707

34,012
3,128

(25 r,103)

396,5r7

----Tq6fir
11,226,474

2015

s 2,879,412
50,373
5,955

Operating Revenue:

Sewer Charges

Sewer Connection Fees

Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Costs of Providing Services

Administrative and General

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue,(Expenses):

Interest Income
NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Loan Principal Credit
Interest Expense

Change in Net Position (Before Transfers)

Transfers
Capital Acquisitions
Construction in Progress

Depreciation
NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loan Receivable
Principal Paid on Debt Service

NJ Environmental Infrast¡ucture Trust Loan Principal Credit
Amortization of Bond Premium
Designated per Bond Sale Provisions

Change in Net Position (After Transfers)

Net Position, Beginning of Year

s 2,430,912
8,5 8l

1t,707

2,451,200

1,230,138
2r7,679
392,903

1.840.720

610,480

33,949
3,128

(25 I,103)

396,454

(r9,643)
(404,264)
392,903
540,778

(926,970)
(3,128)
(7,604)
25,151
(6,323)

4.769.196

I,194,885
228,311
344,427

2,451,2Q0 2,935,740

1,230,138
2t7,679
392,903

1,840,720 1,767,623

610,480 I,l68,l l7

$ 63

(25, r 5 l)
(25,088)

1,063,896

63

20,804

(202.019',)

986p02

10,239,572 (t
o
ln
U
t-
lrl S

Net Position, End of Year $ 4,762,873 $ 1,038,808 $ 5,821,31Q S rr,622,991 S 11,226,474
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WARREN COTINTY @EOUEST RTVER) MLNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF OPERATINGREVENUEAND COSTS FUNDED BY
OPERATING REVENUE COMPARED TO BUDGET

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FORTHE YEARENDED DECEMBER 31.2015

Budget

After
Modification

Excess or
Deficit

SCHEDULE 2

1 of2

2015

Actual
2016

Budget

$ 400,000

2,519,599
10,000

r0,000

2016

Actual

Operating Revenue:

Anticipated Fund Balance

User Charges and Fees

(Sewer Treatment Service)

Interest on Investments and Deposits

Connection Fees

Other Revenue

Total Revenue 2,939,599 2,939,599

$ 400,000

2,519,599

10,000

10,000

$ 400,000

2,430,912

34,012
8,581

11,707

2,885,212

$ (88,687)

24,012

8,581

1,707

(54,387)

$ 2,879,412

20,804

50,373

5,955

2,9s6,544

Expenses:

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages - Operations

Maintenance

Vehicle
Contracted Services

Education and Training

Uniforms

Permits

Renewal and Replacement

Building and Property

Fuel and Gasoline

Electricity
Water
Telephone

Sludge Disposal

Insurance

Contingency
I-ab

Alarm System

Chemicals

Engineering

Miscellaneous

Workmen's Compensation

Hospitalization Insurance

Employer Social Security and

Medicare Contribution

Employer Disability Contribution

Employer PERS Conhibution

Total Operating Expenses

327,8s0
138,485

6,22r
2,250
2,500

3,500

20,000
150,000

10,500

210,000

250

9,900

195,000

32,023

57,065

30,000

1,000

45,000

60,000

2,500
16,850

155,725

10,500

210,000
2s0

9,923
164,605

32,023

57,065

30,000
1,028

58,788

60,000
2,500

16,850

155,725

1,696

2,589

12,859

2,250

804

9ll
7,141

150,000

3,8r5
190,838

171

9,923
127,176

25,010

327,850
125,000

5,000

2,250
2,500

3,500

20,000

r50,000

31,082

2,250
39,375

31,082

2,250

39,375

4,480

626
(68,378)

284,02r
138,485

6,221

26,602

1,624

r07,753

43,829

6,68s

19,162
79

37,429
7,013

57,065
6,277

290,107

121,811

1,947

2,500

3,391

12,050

67,893

6,402
188,760

t54
9,084

133,510

26,116

25,361
1,478

34,109

23,723

1,028

58,788

51,206
t,812

r5,040

139,758

8,794

688

1,810

15,967

30,000

527

45,000

58,751

1,269

r 5,835

I 18,830

1,534,620 1,532,770 1,230,138 302,632 I,194,885



43

WARREN COLINTY OEOUEST RIVER) MLINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUE AND COSTS FT]NDED BY
OPERATING REVENUE COMPARED TO BUDGET

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOLINTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 20 15

(Continued)

Excess or
Deficit

SCHEDULE 2

2 of2

2015

Actual

Expenses: (Cont'd):

Administrative and General Expenses:

Salaries and Wages - General Administration

Advertising
Postage

Contracted Equipment

Legal and Accounting Services

Miscellaneous Consultant Services

Garbage Disposal

Ofhce Supplies

Education and Training

Trustee Fees

Total Administrative and

General Expenses

Debt Service:

Bond and Loan Principal

Interest on Bonds and Loans

Total Debt Service Expenses

Total Costs Funded by

Operating Revenue

Operating Excess (Deficit) Anticipated

2016
Budget

88,975

4,500

1,500

960
18,000

26,750

80,000

3,700

500
1,757

223,035 224,885 217,679 7,206 228,311

6,392

326,512

122,846

1,181,944 1,181,944 1,175,552 6,392 449,358

2,939,599 2,939,s99 2,623,369 316,230 r,872,554

88,97s

4,500

1,500

960

18,000

24,900

80,000

3,700

500

85,984

3,333
785

949
16,210

26,750

79,859

3,5s9
250

2,991

1,167

715
ll

1,790

90,402
2,100

1,021

826
22,631

23,900

8r,974
3,700

Budget
After

Modification
2016

Actual

$ $ $$$

l4l
r4l
250

926,970

254,974

926,970

2s4,974

926,970

248,582

$ -u- $ -0- s 26r,843 $ 26r,843 $ r,083,990



RITY
SCHEDULE OF NEW JERSEY ENVIRONMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS PAYABLE - TRUST LOAN -

BELVIDERE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE

Original
Maturities of Loans

Outstanding Dec. 3 1, 2016

SCHEDULE 3

I ofã

Balance
Dec.31,2016

$ 837,525

490,000

Date Amount

Issue of 2002/
Refunding
Series 2007 A

t0lt5l07 $ 2,100,000

Issue of 2003 l0ll5l03 1,050,000

Interest
Rate

5.0a%
5.00%
5.00%
s.00%
5.00%
4.75%

Date

08l0U17
08/0 1/1 8

08/01/19
0810t/20
08/0u21
0810v22

Amount

$ 123,638

128,423
L37,970
142,770
147,564
157,160

60,000
65,000
65,000
70,000
75,000
75,000
80,000

Balance
Jan. I,2016 Matured Defeased

s 956,637 $ 119,112

550,000 56,872 $ 3,1284.20%
4.25%
5.00%
5.00%
450%
4.75%
4.75%

08l0v17
08/0 1/l I
08/01/19
0810U20
08l0v2r
0810U22
08t0U23

CNo
FI

tt L.r À
l\)QÞ



SCHEDULE OF NEW JERSEY ENVIRONMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS PAYABLE - TRUST LOAN -
BELVIDERE V/ASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE

(Continued)

Original
Maturities of Loans

Outstanding Ðec. 31, 2016
Matured Defeased

$ 12,654 $ (3,128)
(323,638)

SCHEDULE 3

2 of2

Balance
Dec.3l,2016

$ 323,638
4,443,887

Interest
Rate Date Amount

Balance
Jan.l,2016

$ 314,712
4,767,525

Date Amount

Issue of 2014 8llll4 $ 3,575,000

Balance Comprised of:
Short-Term Portion
Long-Term Portion

5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
s.000%
5.000%
s.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.000%
3.tzs%
3.250%

811/17

8/1/18
8ly19
81U20
811l2r
8/U22
8lr/23
81U24
8/Uzs
81U26
811127

81U28
8/U29
8/t/30
81113t

81U32
81v33

$ 140,000
145,000
155,000

160,000
170,000
180,000
190,000
195,000
205,000
215,000
220,000
225,000
235,000
240,000
245,000
255,000
265,000

$ 3,575,000 $ 135,000 $ 3,440,000

$ 5,081,637 $ 310,984 $ 3,128 $ 4,767,525

$ 5,081,637 $ (310,984) $ (3,128) $ 4,767,525

(A
o
LTJ

U
ì\) \-
t+)$rÀ
N) (¡) Ul



SCFIEDULE 4
7 of2

WARREN COUNTY æEOUEST RIVER MLINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHOzuTY
SCHEDULE OF NEW JERSEY ENVIRONMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS PAYABLE. FTIND LOAN.

BELVIDERE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT I]PGRADE

Maturities of Loans
Outstanding De c. 31, 201 6Original lnterest

RateDate Amount

t0/15/02 $ 2,200,000 0.00%

toltS/03 1,004,515 0.00%

8/t/14 8,132,882 0.000/0

Amount
Balance

Ian.1,2016
Balance

Dec. 31,2016

Issue of2002

Issue of2003

Issue of20l4

2n/t7
8/1117

2/1118

8/l/18
2/U19
8/Ut9
au20
8/l/20
211Dl
8/r/21

2/l/22
8t1n2

2^/r7
8lr/17
2/t/18
8n/t8
2lut9
8/U19

au20
8/l/20
2lU2t
8/vzr

Date

2/ut7
8/1/17

2/t/18
8/l/1 8

2/t/19
8/t/19

t4,216
99,016

12,096

100,1 58

9,895

104,479

7,530

105,376

5,084

106,192

2,556

1 10,187

6,977

43,746

6,205
4ó,038

5,358

45,19t
4,362

47,259

3,290
23,589

r49,915

299,830

149,915

299,830

149,91s

299,830

$

Matured

$ 790,833 $ 114,048 $ 676,78s

284,208 52,t93 232,0r5

8.r32.882 449,745 7,683,137

U)o
Ér
Lll
U-

^L
Èô \rJ StJso\



WARREN COL'NTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCFIEDULE OF NEW JERSEY ENVIRONMENTAL INFRASTRUCTI,IRE LOANS PAYABLE - FUND LOAN -

BELVIDERE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE
(Continued)

Original

Maturities of Loans

Outstanding Dec. 31. 2016

SCHEDIJLE 4
2 of2

Balance

Dec.3l,2016Amount

Interest

Rate

$ 8,132,882 0.00%

Date Amount
Balance

Ian.1,2016Date

8/t/14 $

Matured

s 9,207,923 $ 615,986 $ 8,s91,937

$ 6 15,986

8.591.937

$ Q.286) $
(613.700)

6 13,700

7.978.237

Issue of 2014 (Continued)

Balance Comprised ot
Short-Term Portion

Long-Term Portion

2/t/20
8/t/20
2/ll2l
8lt/21
2lt/22
81U22

2/t/23
8/v23
2/l/24
8n/24
2n/25
8nD5
2/U26

8/1t26

2/v27
8nt27
2/t/28
8lt/28
2/t/29
8n/29
21u30

811/30

2/t/3r
8/U3l
2/t/32
8/v32
2/t/33
8/t/33

149,9t5

299,830

149,915

299,830

t49,9t5
299,830
149,9ts
299,830

149,915

299,830

149,91s

299,830

t49,9t5
299,830

149,915

299,830

149,915

299,830

149,915

299,830

149,915

299,830

149,915

299,830

t49,9t5
299,830

149,9t5

337,302

v)
C)

trl
U

x¡C

N)è-l

$ 9.207.923 $ (615.986) S 8.s91.937



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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@Nl$l\|[ttlflLrp
Certified Publ¡c Accountonls & Advisors

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Comoliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

P erformed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Wa:ren County (Pequest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority
Belvidere, NJ

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of
New Jersey ("the Division"), and the standa¡ds applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Pequest River
Municipal Utilities Authority (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended December 3I,2016, and the related

notes to the financial statements, which comprise the Authority's financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 7,2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's intemal control over
financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of ãxpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correcl,

misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealorcss is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section

and was not designed to identi$' all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control that we

consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identifred.

Mount Arlington Corporate Center
200 Valley Road, Suite 300

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856
973-328-1825 | 973-328-0507 Fax

Lawrence Business Park
1 1 Lawrence Road
Newton, NJ 07860

973-383-6699 | 973-3834555 Fax

www.nisivoccia.com
lndependent Member of BKR Internat¡onal
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The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Wa:ren County @equest River)
Municipal Utilities Authority
Page2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authorþ's financial statements are free of material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial

statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our

audit, and, accordinglyn we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authorþ's internal control or on

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Mount Arlington, New Jersey
April7,2017

NISIVOCCIA LLP

William F. Schroeder
Registered Municipal Accountant #452
Certified Public Accountant



New Jersey

Agency or Department

New Jersey Environmental
Infrastructure Trust Fund

Program

AccountNo.

s340454-04

WARREN COUNTY ßEQUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I" 2016

NOTAPPLICABLE

IVARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MLINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016

Grant Period

Grant

Award

AmountName of Program From

Oxford'Wastewater Treatment

Plant Upgrade

Total

Program

Expenditures

Total

Cumulative

ExpendituresTo Received

0t/0u14 t2l3l/17 $ 11,707,882 s 540,778 $ 294,992 S 10,920,473

$ s40,778 s 294,992 S 10,920,473

U¡r

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
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WARREN COUNTY (PEQUEST RIVER) MTINICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 I. 2016

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards (the "schedules") includes the

federal and state grant activity of the Warren County (Pequest River) Municipal Utilities Authority under

programs of the federal and state governments for the year ended December 31,2016. The information in
these schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Because the schedules present only a selected

portion of the operations of the Authority, they are not intended to and do not present the financial position,

changes in fund balance or cash flows of the Authority.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are

reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles

contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as

to reimbursement. Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedules represent adjustments or credits made

in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through identif,ring
numbers are presented where available. The Authority has elected to use the l0 percent de minimis indirect
cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

C. RELATIONSHIPTOFEDERALAND STM

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and

state financial reports, as applicable.

D. LOANS PAYABLE

At December 31, 2016, the Authority had $13,359,462 of NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loan Payable

outstanding.

Currently, the Authority is in the process of repaying the NJ Environmental Infrastructure Loan Payable.

There was 5540,778 of loan receipts and $294,992 of loan expenditures in the current year. The project

which relates to this loan is ongoing.

B
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WARREN COUNTY (PEOUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016

Summa{v of Auditors' Results:

- The Independent Auditors' Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the Authority's financial statements.

- There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial

statements as reported inthe Independent Auditors' Report on Internøl Control Over Financiøl Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

G ov ernment Audi t in g St and ar ds.

- No instances of noncompliance material to the frnancial statements of the Authority which would be required to

be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

- The Authority was not subject to the single audit provisions of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey's OMB

Circular l5-08 for the year ended December 31,2016 as both state and federal grant expenditures were less than

the single audit thresholds of $750,000 identified in the Uniform Guidance and NJOMB l5-08.

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements which are required to be Reported in Accordance with Generally

Accepted Government Auditing Standards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings required to be reported under Generally Accepted Government Auditing
Standards.

Findings and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards:

Not Applicable - Grant expenditures were below the single audit threshold

Findings and Ouestioned Costs for State Awards:

Not Applicable - Grant expenditures were below the single audit threshold.
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WARREN COLI'NTY (PEQUEST RIVER) MLI'NICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 2016

The Authorþ had no findings during the prior year
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WARREN COUNTY (PEQUEST RIVER) MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AUTHORITY
COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 404: I 1-4 et seq.

N.J.S. 404:1 1-3 states:

a. " When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the contracting agent in the aggregate does not exceed in a
contract yearthe total sum of $17,500, the contract may be awarded by a purchasing agent when so authorized by

ordinance or resolution, as appropriate to the contracting unit, of the governing body of the contracting unit without
public advertising for bids, except that the governing body of any contracting unit may adopt an ordinance or
resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipt of public bids or the solicitation of competitive quotations. If the

purchasing agent is qualified pursuantto subsection b. of section 9 of P.L. 1071, c.198 (C.404:11-9), the governing
body of the contracting unit may establish that the bid threshold may be up to $25,000. Such authorization may be

granted for each contráct or by ã general delegation ofthe power to negotiate and award such contracts pursuant to
this section.

b. Any contract made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months, except that
contracts for professional services pursuant to subparagraph (i) ofparagraph (a) ofsubsection (l) ofsection 5 ofP.L.
1971, c.198 (C.404: 11-5) may be awarded for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months. The Division of Local
Government Services shall adopt and promulgate rules and regulations concerning the methods of accounting for all
contracts that do not coincide with the contracting unit's fiscal year.

c. The Governor, in consultation with the Department of the Treasury, shall, no later than March 1 of every fifth year
beginning in the fifth year after the year in which P.L.1999, c.440 takes effect, adjust the threshold amount and the

higher threshold amount which the governing body is permitted to establish, as set forth in subsection a. of this
section, or the threshold amount resulting from any adjustment under this subsection, in direct proportion to the rise or
fall of the index rate as that term is defined in section 2 of P.L.1971, c.198 (C.40All-2), and shall round the

adjustment to the nearest $1,000. The Governor shall, no later than June I of every fifth year, notiff each goveming
body of the adjustment. The adjustment shall become effective on July I of the year in which it is made."

N.J.S. 404: I l-4 states: "Every contract awarded by the contracting agent for the provision or performance of any
goods or services, the cost of which in the aggregate exceeds the bid threshold, shall be awarded only by resolution of
the governing body of the contracting unit to the lowest responsible bidder after public advertising for bids and

bidding therefore, except as is provided otherwise in this act or specifically by any other law. The governing body of
a contracting unit may, by resolution approved by a majority of the governing body and subject to subsections b. and

c. of this section, disqualifu a bidder who would otherwise be determined to be the lowest responsible bidder, if the
governing body finds that it has had prior negative experience with the bidder."

Effective July l, 2015 the bid threshold in accordance with N.J.S.A 404:11-3 and 404:11-4 (as amended) is $17,500
and with a qualified purchasing agent the threshold may be up to $40,000.

The minutes indicated that resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for
"Professional Services", per N.J.S. 404:l l-5.
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COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

(CONTINUED)

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 404:l l-4 et seq. (Cont'd)

In as much as the system of records did provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the performance
of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an accumulation could not
reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine whether any clear-cut violations
existed. None were noted.

Over expenditure of Individual Budget Appropriations

The analysis of the Authority schedule of operating revenue and costs funded by operating revenue compared to budget has

an over expenditure in the employer PERS contribution line item. This was due to the change in net pension liability,
associated pension deferred inflows and outflows and the accrual of the Authority's pension contribution subsequent to the

measurement date recorded as accounts payable at year end which are not recorded in the Authority's accounting records.

Therefore, no recommendation for this over-expenditure is deemed necessary.

Management Suggestion

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

The next Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") statement which will have a significant impact on the

Borough will be GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. This standard replaces GASB No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.It is similar to GASB Statement No. 68,

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, in that successful implementation of this standard will require the
provision of certain key financial and non-financial information from the State ofNew Jersey.

Status of Prior Year's Findings/Recommendations

There were no prior year audit recommendations.
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SUMMARY OF TIONS

There are no recommendations for 2016.


